
 
 
Lone Tree City Council Agenda 
Tuesday, July 5, 2016 

 
Meeting Location:  City Council Meeting Room, Lone Tree Civic Center, 8527 Lone Tree Parkway. 
Meeting Procedure: The Lone Tree City Council and staff will meet in a public Study Session at 4:30pm. At 
6:00pm and following the meeting, if necessary, the Council Meeting will adjourn and convene in Executive Session. 
If an Executive Session is not necessary, Council will recess for dinner. The Regular Session will be convened at 
7:00pm. Study Sessions and Regular Sessions are open to the public, Executive Sessions are not. Comments from the 
public are welcome at these occasions: 1. Public Comment (brief comments on items not scheduled for a public 
hearing) 2. Public Hearings. To arrange accommodations in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act at 
public meetings, please contact the City Clerk at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

 
4:30pm Study Session Agenda 

1. Xcel Energy 1% Fund Recommendation  
2. Library Building Transfer Update  
3. Award of Contract for HVAC Equipment Replacement on the Municipal Office Building  
4. Award of Contract for Roof Replacement on the Municipal Office Building  
5. Approval for Capital Expenditure Exceeding $100,000 – Sound System Components 
6. Approval for Capital Expenditure Exceeding $100,000 – Lobby Gallery Lighting  

 
6:00pm Executive Session Agenda 

1. Roll Call 
2. Executive Session 

 
7:00pm Regular Session Agenda 

3. Opening of Regular Meeting/Pledge of Allegiance 
4. Amendments to the Agenda and Adoption of the Agenda 
5. Conflict of Interest Inquiry 
6. Public Comment 
7. Announcements 
8. Presentations 
9. Consent Agenda 

a. Minutes of the June 21, 2016 Regular Meeting 
b. Claims for the Period of June 13-27, 2016 

10. Administrative Matters 
a. Award of Contract for HVAC Equipment Replacement on the Municipal Office 

Building  
b. Award of Contract for Roof Replacement on the Municipal Office Building  
c. Approval for Capital Expenditure Exceeding $100,000 – Sound System Components 
d. Approval for Capital Expenditure Exceeding $100,000 – Lobby Gallery Lighting  

11. Council Comments 
12. Adjournment 

 
  

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 1 of 70



 
 

City of Lone Tree Upcoming Events  
more info available at www.cityoflonetree.com & www.lonetreeartscenter.org 

• Comedian Kevin Fitzgerald with Chicken Lips Comedy Theater, Saturday, July 9th, 8:00 
p.m., LTAC Main Stage 

• Margaret Ozaki, Voyage A Paris, Arts in the Afternoon, Wednesday, July 13th, 1:30 p.m., 
LTAC Event Hall 

• FACE, Tunes on the Terrace, Friday, July 15th, 8:00 p.m., LTAC Terrace Theater 
• An Evening with Stephen Marchionda, Saturday, July 16th, 8:00 p.m., LTAC Main Stage 

 
 
 

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 2 of 70

http://www.cityoflonetree.com/
http://www.lonetreeartscenter.org/


 

City Council Minutes Page 1 of 3 June 21, 2016 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
HELD 

June 21, 2016 
 

A regular meeting of the Council of the City of Lone Tree was held on Tuesday, 
June 21, 2016, at 7:00 p.m., at the Lone Tree City Council Chambers located at 
8527 Lone Tree Parkway, Lone Tree, Colorado 80124. 
  

 
Attendance  
  In attendance were: 
 

Jacqueline Millet, Mayor 
Susan Squyer, Mayor Pro Tem  
Cathie Brunnick, Council Member 
Jay Carpenter, Council Member  
Wynne Shaw, Council Member 
 
Also in attendance were: 

 
Seth Hoffman, City Manager 
Jennifer Pettinger, City Clerk 
Torie Brazitis, Assistant to the City Manager 
Jeff Holwell, Economic Development Director 
Commander Ron Pinson, Lone Tree Police Department 
Kristin Baumgartner, Finance Director  
Kelly First, Community Development Director 
Lisa Rigsby Peterson, Lone Tree Arts Center Director 
Neil Rutledge, Assistant City Attorney, White, Bear and Ankele, P.C. 
John Cotten, Public Works Director, TTG Corp. 
   

 
Call to Order 

Mayor Millet called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m., and observed that a quorum 
was present. 
  

 
Pledge of Allegiance  
  Mayor Millet led those assembled in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance. 
    
 
Amendments to the Agenda 

There were no amendments to the agenda.  
______ 

 

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 3 of 70



 

City Council Minutes Page 2 of 3 June 21, 2016 

Conflict of Interest 
There was no conflict of interest. 
______ 

 
Public Comment 

There was no public comment. 
______  
 

Announcements 
Mayor Millet announced upcoming events. 
______ 
  

Presentations 
Distinguished Budget Presentation Award 
Kristin Baumgartner, Finance Director, presented to Council the Government 
Finance Officers Association (GFOA) Distinguished Budget Presentation Award. 
______  
 

Consent Agenda 
Mayor Millet noted the following items on the Consent Agenda, which consisted 
of: 

 
 Minutes of the June 7, 2016 Regular Meeting 
 Claims for the period of May 30 – June 13, 2016 
 Treasurer’s Report for April 2016 

 
Council Member Shaw moved, Council Member Carpenter seconded, to approve 
the Consent Agenda. The motion passed with a 5 to 0 vote.  
   

 
Public Works 

Approval of Deeds Transferring Parcels to RTD for Southeast Rail Project 
 
John Cotten, Public Works Director, introduced the item.  
 
Council Member Shaw moved, Mayor Pro Tem Squyer seconded, for approval of 
the transfer of the two deeds from the City of Lone Tree to RTD.  The motion 
passed with a 5 to 0 vote.  
  
 

Administrative Matters 
Acceptance of 2015 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 
 
Kristin Baumgartner, Finance Director, introduced the item and introduced  
Kim Higgins, Eide Bailey, Auditor. Ms. Higgins spoke about the Audit. 
 

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 4 of 70



 

City Council Minutes Page 3 of 3 June 21, 2016 

Council Member Carpenter moved, Council Member Brunnick seconded the 
acceptance of the 2015 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. The motion 
passed with a vote of 5-0. 
  
Approval of Pre-Construction Agreement with Hamon Infrastructure  
 
John Cotten, Public Works Director, introduced the item. Phil Buckley, Corum 
Real Estate Group, spoke about the project. 
 
Council Member Brunnick moved, Council Member Shaw seconded, to approve 
Hamon Infrastructure’s contract agreement for the total IGMP Contract amount of 
$5,220,000.00.  The motion passed with a 5 to 0 vote.  
  
 

Adjournment  
There being no further business, Mayor Millet adjourned the meeting at 7:42 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
       
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 5 of 70



 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
 
 

TO:  Mayor Millet and City Council  

FROM: Darin Rose, CFM, SFP GGP, Facilities Manager 

FOR:  July 5, 2016 City Council Meeting 

DATE: June 29, 2016 

SUBJECT: Award of Contract for Replacement of HVAC Equipment on the Municipal 
Office Building 

 
Summary 
The City received insurance proceeds from CIRSA, our insurance carrier, for hail damage 
discovered during a recent facility inspection. The funds received from CIRSA will be 
reinvested into capital replacement of the heating, ventilation and air conditioning (HVAC) 
systems and a new roof on the Municipal Office Building. 
 
The rooftop HVAC equipment is over 17 years old, and at or near the end of its lifecycle. We 
will be replacing 24 Carrier roof top units (RTU’s) with the same size and brand. The Carrier 
brand equipment was specified for this project because of the manufacturer’s established 
quality and performance, as well as cost savings not needing to retrofit roof curbs to 
accommodate a different installation configuration. 
 
Cost 
The contract price is $189,899. We are recommending we budget a 10% contingency of 
$18,608 for a potential total cost of $208,888 still below the amount received from CIRSA. 
 
This project was not in the original approved 2016 budget. However, CIRSA’s proceeds will 
be considered new revenue and will be utilized to cover the cost of this project.  Since the 
insurance proceeds are restricted for facility repairs, Staff’s recommendation is to proceed 
with the improvements in 2016.  Staff will evaluate if a formal budget amendment is needed 
in November, but one is not anticipated at this time. 
 
Suggested Motion or Recommended Action 
I move to accept the proposal from AMS in the amount $189,899 for the replacement of the 
HVAC equipment at the Municipal Office Building and authorize the City Manager to sign a 
contract for those services. 
 
 

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 6 of 70



 

 
Background 
The bidding process was an open invitation through the state’s Rocky Mountain Bid System, 
with a mandatory meeting to give contractors the opportunity to inspect the equipment and 
site conditions. Bids were received on May 30, 2016 and evaluated during the following 
days. 
 
AMS was the lowest price, but they also had the most comprehensive proposal and 
understand the complexities of working with municipalities and active facilities. References 
were checked with highly favorable feedback. AMS is a local firm located in Centennial. 
 
The new units will provide more reliability and improved energy efficiency. An air flow 
verification test is planned which will help validate comfort levels for the City and tenant 
occupants when the installation is complete. 
 
The work is estimated to take a week to complete with some weekend and overtime work 
required. Coordination will also take place in conjunction with the roof replacement work 
being conducted at the Municipal Office Building in the September/October time range. 
 
Attachments: 
Attachment A: Municipal Building Site Photo 
Attachment B: Bid Summary 
Attachment C: Agreement 

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 7 of 70



City of Lone Tree HVAC Replacement ATTACHMENT A 

June 21, 2016 

North 

 
South 

 
 

Legend: 
Yellow Highlights: Twenty-four HVAC units to be replaced. 
Red X: Four abandoned units being removed and not replaced. 
Aqua X: One HVAC unit remains (replaced three years ago.) 
 

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 8 of 70



Attachment B City of Lone Tree June 21, 2016

HVAC Replacement

Contractor
American 

Mechanical 
Services

Reliant Heating & Air 
Conditioning

Colorado Mechanical 
Systems, Inc. Trautman & Shreve Westco Systems

Total Bid 189,899.00$             200,500.00$             209,520.00$             251,120.00$             257,668.00$             

Difference to Lead Bidder -$                         12,126.00$               21,146.00$               62,746.00$               69,294.00$               

Percentage of Difference 0% 5.28% 9.36% 24.37% 26.30%

Additional Comments:
Company Information Provided Y Y Y Y Y
Bid Bond Provided Y Y Y Y Y
Performance Bond Provided Y Y Y Y Y
Proposed Schedule Y
Safety Information Y Y 

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 9 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 10 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 11 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 12 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 13 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 14 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 15 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 16 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 17 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 18 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 19 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 20 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 21 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 22 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 23 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 24 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 25 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 26 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 27 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 28 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 29 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 30 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 31 of 70



 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

TO:  Mayor Millet and City Council 

FROM: Darin Rose, CFM, SFP GGP, Facilities Manager 

FOR:  July 5, 2016 Council Meeting  

DATE: June 29, 2016 

SUBJECT: Award of Contract to Replace the Roof on the Municipal Office Building 
 
Summary 
The City received insurance proceeds from CIRSA for hail damage found during a recent 
facility inspection. The funds received from CIRSA are being reinvested into capital 
replacement of the roof and HVAC systems at the Municipal Office Building. 
 
The roof is over 17 years old, and at or near the end of its lifecycle. We will be replacing the 
existing ballasted EPDM roof with a fully adhered Sika Sarnafil brand PVC roof. The Sika 
Sarnafil roof was specified based upon past experience with the product and its durability 
and longevity.  
 
Cost 
The contract price is $186,081. We are recommending we budget a 10% contingency of 
$18,608 for a potential total cost of $204,689, still below the amount received from CIRSA. 
 
This project was not in the original approved 2016 budget. However, CIRSA’s proceeds will 
be considered new revenue and will be utilized to cover the cost of this project.  Since the 
insurance proceeds are restricted for facility repairs, Staff’s recommendation is to proceed 
with the improvements in 2016.  Staff will evaluate if a formal budget amendment is needed 
in November, but one is not anticipated at this time. 
 
Suggested Motion or Recommended Action 
I move to accept the proposal from Progressive Roofing in the amount $204,689 for the 
replacement of the roof at the Municipal Building and authorize the City Manager to sign a 
contract for those services.  
 
 
 
 

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 32 of 70



 

Background 
The bidding process was an open invitation through the state’s Rocky Mountain Bid System, 
with a mandatory meeting to give contractors the opportunity to inspect the existing roof and 
site conditions. Bids were received by May 30, 2016 and evaluated following week. 
 
Progressive Roofing was the best price of the five contractors who bid on this project. 
Additional basis for their selection was: (i) they had the most comprehensive proposal, 
providing pricing for services as the specification requested, (ii) provided a value priced 
option for upgraded material, which was less than other contractors’ base proposal, (iii) 
reference feedback was verified and highly favorable, (iv) Progressive Roofing has a 
regional office located in Denver. 
 
The roofing system to be installed is different than what is currently installed.  
The new system: 
 

• Will be “fully adhered” which means the rock ballast will not be needed; insurance 
carriers like this because the rock may not get drawn up and thrown in a tornado. 
 

• The material is Energy Star approved; white in finish and will help with reflectivity and 
keeping the building cooler in the summer, saving on utilities. 

 
• The 4.6% cost to upgrade to a thicker 72mil roof membrane (compared to the 60mil) 

will translate into a 20% increased lifespan, making the roof more sustainable. 
 

• The manufacturer Sika, requires the roof installation companies to be directly 
responsible for five years, opposed to the industry standard of two years. This 
insures quality installers perform the work and take ownership of workmanship. 

 
Work is estimated to take three weeks to complete with some weekend/overtime work 
required. Coordination will also take place in conjunction with the HVAC replacement work 
being conducted at Municipal Office Building also in the September/October time range. 
 
Attachments: 
Attachment A: Municipal Building Site Photo 
Attachment B: Bid Summary 
Attachment C: Agreement 

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 33 of 70



City of Lone Tree Roof Replacement ATTACHMENT A 
  

June 21, 2016 

North 

 
South 

 
 

Ballast (river rocks) will be removed and placed in the east parking lot for further determination of its reuse. The new 
roof will not require ballast.  
The reddish rock is approximately 2” in diameter and the tan rock 4” in diameter.  

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 34 of 70



Attachment B City of Lone Tree June 21, 2016

Roof Replacement

Contractors Progressive Roofing Jewett Roofing Turner Morris Inc.
Bajwa Roofing       

[A]
Presidential Roofing 

[B] Turner Roofing [C]
Total Bid 186,081.00$             234,800.00$             244,650.00$             174,965.00$             197,196.75$             229,000.00$             

Difference to Lead Bidder -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          
Percentage of Difference 0% 20.74% 23.93% -5.97% 5.63% [A] 18.74% [C]

Additional Comments:

Company Information Provided Y Y Y Y Y Y
Bid Bond Provided Y Y Y Y
Performance Bond Provided Y Y Y Y
References Y
Proposed Schedule Y
Safety Plan Y Y

Notes:
Pricing A, B, C: Contractor submitted alternate pricing to what was specified. Noted below and priced is the closest equivalent to the Sarnafil 72mil roof membrane.
Inferior membranes compared to Sika Sarnafil.Thickness of membrane can be up to 10% less than specification.
Bajwa Roofing -Pricing A: Versico 80 mil
Presidential Roofing-Pricing B: Duro-Tuff 80 mil
Turner Roofing - Pricing C: Genflex 60 mil

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 35 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 36 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 37 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 38 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 39 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 40 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 41 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 42 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 43 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 44 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 45 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 46 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 47 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 48 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 49 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 50 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 51 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 52 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 53 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 54 of 70



07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 55 of 70



 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

TO:  Mayor Millet and City Council 

FROM: Paul Ackerman, Technical Director LTAC 

FOR:  July 5, 2016 Study Session  

DATE: June 28, 2016 

SUBJECT: Approval for Capital Expenditure Exceeding $100,000.00 – Sound System 
Components 

Summary 
Attached for your approval is an invoice from the low bidder for the 2016 budgeted capital 
improvement project to install a new speaker system in the Main Theatre for the Lone Tree 
Arts Center. The five bids received ranged from a high of $138,480.20 to the low bid from 
Specialized Audio and Video Inc. (SAVI). SAVI’s bid of $104,293.80 includes equipment, 
shipping, four days of onsite installation and set up support and a five year warranty. As this 
purchase order exceeds the City Manager’s spending authority, we are requesting Council’s 
approval in order to receive these necessary components in time to install the new system 
in the August 2016 installation window we have built into the calendar. 
 
Cost 
The cost of the speaker system is $104,293.80. This amount is part of the $150,000 
approved by Council in the 2016 capital budget for the Arts Center. With this purchase, it is 
likely that the entire project will come in a few thousand dollars under budget. 
 
Suggested Motion or Recommended Action 
We ask Council to approve this purchase order to purchase a new speaker system from 
SAVI in the amount of $104,293.80. 
 
Background 
In order to maximize the full potential of the acoustics in the Main Theatre, it is necessary to 
upgrade the speaker system from the basic system that was installed as part of the original 
building commission. While there are virtually no changes necessary to enhance the 
listening experience for acoustic music, we have struggled to create an ideal sound 
experience for amplified music. It has always been difficult to mix amplified music properly, 
resulting in distortion and some very loud and some ‘dead’ spots in the audience. The new 
speaker system will result in an optimized listening experience for our audiences, and will 

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 56 of 70



 

also allow us to consider presenting artists whom we have not been able to consider in the 
past, knowing that we’d be unable to create the proper audio environment for our audiences 
(this would include groups that have large brass sections, electric guitars, etc.).   
 
Last year, we engaged a sound design consultant, Ron Lorman, to evaluate our sound 
system needs and advise us in maximizing our Main Theatre sound potential. Mr. Lorman is 
one of the leading sound design experts in the country, and we have relied on his 
recommendations to help guide our design. Both he and the manufacturer of the equipment 
he recommended endorsed SAVI as a preferred vendor along with a handful of others. After 
each of these vendors bid on the project, the bids were evaluated, and based on their low 
bid and excellent reputation, we are recommending purchasing our system from SAVI.  
 
I have personal experience with SAVI from my work at Blue Man Productions where they 
were the winning bidder for our audio installations in both Las Vegas and Orlando. They are 
exceptionally committed to quality in their work and customer satisfaction, and come with 
recommendations from experts in the field. 
 

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 57 of 70



Proposal No. SAV060916

Name Date 6/10/2016

Address Order No.

City Lone Tree State CO ZIP 80124 Rep S.Duncan

Phone FOB Clifton Park, NY

Qty Unit Price TOTAL

1 104,293.80$  $104,293.80

1 Design Services -$               $0.00

1 Project Management and Administration -$               $0.00

1 System Engineering & Documentation -$               $0.00

1 Equipment Rack Fabrication & Testing -$               $0.00

1 On-site Project Services -$               $0.00

1 System Programming -$               $0.00

1 System Commissioning & Training -$               $0.00

1 Warranty Services -$               $0.00

Subtotal  $104,293.80

Shipping & Handling  -$                     
Taxes  0.00% -$                     

 

TOTAL  $104,293.80

Proposal Accepted By:_____________________________________      Date: ___________________

 

Lone Tree Arts Center

10075 Commons St.

Paul Ackerman (720) 509-1006

Description

Equipment as Specified in Appendix "A"

Office Use Only

PROPOSAL
Customer

Bid to supply products listed in appendix "A" along with 
d&b support practices.

Please note alternate products are listed as a quantity of 
(1) and are not added to the total.

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 58 of 70



APPENDIX "A"

d&b Equipment  $           104,293.80 

12 d&b audiotechnik Z0717.001 Yi8 Loudspeaker 4,664.40$                55,972.80$              

4 d&b audiotechnik Z0719.001 Yi-SUB Subwoofer NL4 4,243.20$                16,972.80$              

2 d&b audiotechnik Z5390.000 Y Flying frame 2,176.20$                4,352.40$                

2 d&b audiotechnik Z5393.001 Y Mounting frame bottom 397.80$                   795.60$                   

1 d&b audiotechnik Z0713.001 Yi10P Loudspeaker 3,416.40$                3,416.40$                

1 d&b audiotechnik Z5399.000 YP Mounting bracket 230.10$                   230.10$                   

3 d&b audiotechnik Z2750.500 D20 Amplifier US / CA 6,279.00$                18,837.00$              

1 d&b audiotechnik Z4010.000 DS10 Audio network bridge 1,692.60$                1,692.60$                

2 d&b audiotechnik Z5345.001 Adapter 4 x NL4 to NLT8M 234.00$                   468.00$                   

2 d&b audiotechnik Z5344.001 Adapter NLT8F to 4 x NL4 280.80$                   561.60$                   

1 Whirwind Custom 4pr. AES Cable Assembley - 6' 97.50$                     97.50$                     

1 d&b audiotechnik Z5343US.100 12ga NLT8 F/M 100ft 374.40$                   374.40$                   

1 d&b audiotechnik Z5343US.150 12ga NLT8 F/M 150ft 522.60$                   522.60$                   

-$                         -$                         

-$                         -$                         

Alternate Equipment  $                          -   

d&b audiotechnik Z2770.500 30D Amplifier US / CA (QTY 1) 5,452.20$                -$                         

-$                         -$                         

-$                         -$                         

-$                         -$                         

 $                          -   

 $                          -   

System Equipment: 104,293.80$            

0% Contingency -$                         

Inbound Shipping -$                         

System Equipment Subtotal: 104,293.80$      

Design Services -$                         

Project Management and Administration -$                         

System Engineering & Documentation -$                         

Equipment Rack Fabrication & Testing -$                         

On-site Project Services -$                         

System Programming -$                         

System Commissioning & Training -$                         

Warranty Services -$                         

Services Subtotal: -$                   

System Equipment Subtotal (from above): 104,293.80$      

Job Subtotal: 104,293.80$      

Logistics to Site: -$                   

TAX: -$                   

Job Total: 104,293.80$      

v1.0 SDLone Tree Arts Center

MAKE DESCRIPTION QTY MODEL  SALE PRICE  SALE EXT. 

APPENDIX "A"

CONTRACTOR FURNISHED EQUIPMENT  

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 59 of 70



 d&b Y-Series 11

The Y10P and Yi10P loudspeakers

1 Broadband measurement, pink noise, crest factor 4, peak measurement, linear weighting
2 Dispersion angle vs frequency plotted using lines of equal sound pressure (isobars) 

 at –6 dB and –12 dB

Y10P and Yi10P loudspeakers

The compact, 2-way passive Y10P and Yi10P loudspeakers 

feature two 8" drivers in a dipole arrangement with a 1�4" 

compression driver mounted onto a rotatable CD horn� The 

Yi10P is the installation version of the Y10P loudspeaker and 

differs only in cabinet construction, finish and mounting 

hardware� Sophisticated horn geometry combined with the 

advanced bass-reflex port design delivers full bandwidth 

capabilities with an extended LF output� These point source, high 

performance cabinets offer 110° horizontal directivity matched 

with a vertical dispersion of 40°; the horn can be rotated by 

90° to enable horizontal orientation�  

The Y10P/Yi10P provide a broad variety of deployment 

possibilities, especially when used as a stand-alone full range 

system, or combined with other elements from the Y-Series, either 

ground stacked or flown� 

The loudspeaker cabinets are constructed from marine plywood, 

the Y10P has an impact and weather protected PCP (Polyurea 

Cabinet Protection) finish, while the Yi10P has an impact resistant 

paint finish� The front of the loudspeaker cabinets are protected 

by a rigid metal grill� The Y10P cabinet incorporates a pair of 

handles whilst M10 threaded inserts are provided for attaching 

d&b rigging hardware�

 

System data

Frequency response (–5 dB standard) ������������������ 59 Hz - 18 kHz

Frequency response (–5 dB CUT mode) ������������� 118 Hz - 18 kHz

Max� sound pressure (1 m, free field)1 ���������������������������������������������

with D6/10D ������������������������������������������������������������������������131 dB

with D12/30D/D20 ������������������������������������������������������������134 dB

with D80  ������������������������������������������������������������������������������136 dB

Input level (100 dB SPL/1 m) �������������������������������������������–17 dBu

Loudspeaker data

Nominal impedance ��������������������������������������������������������������8 ohms

Power handling capacity (RMS/peak 10 ms) ���������400/1600 W

Nominal dispersion angle (h x v) �������������������������������� 110° x 40°

Components ������������������������2 x 8" driver  with neodymium magnet

��������������������������������������������������������������1�4" exit compression driver

�����������������������������������������������������������������passive crossover network

Connections Y10P ����������������������������������������������������� 2 x NLT4 F/M 

������������������������������������������������������������ optional 2 x NL4 or 2 x EP5

Connections Yi10P ������������������� 2 x NL4 and screw terminal block

Weight Y10P / Yi10P ������������������������������������������������ 18 kg (40 lb)

125 250 500 2k1k 4k 8k 16k

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

0

–10

–20

–30

–40

–50

–60

–70

–80

–90

125 250 500 2k1k 4k 8k 16k

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

0

–10

–20

–30

–40

–50

–60

–70

–80

–90

125 250 500 2k1k 4k 8k 16k

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

0

–10

–20

–30

–40

–50

–60

–70

–80

–90

125 250 500 2k1k 4k 8k 16k

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

0

–10

–20

–30

–40

–50

–60

–70

–80

–90

Y10P and Yi10P horizontal 

dispersion characteristics2

Y10P and Yi10P horizontal 

dispersion characteristics/

horizontal setup, horn rotated2

Y10P and Yi10P vertical 

dispersion characteristics2

Y10P and Yi10P vertical 

dispersion characteristics/

horizontal setup, horn rotated2

Y10P cabinet dimensions in mm [inch]

Yi10P cabinet dimensions in mm [inch]

Front view

Top view

Side view

Rear view

257 [10] 341 [13�4]

5
8

0
 [2

2
�8

]

174 [6�85]

Front view Side view

257 [10]

174 [6�85]

Top view Rear view

341 [13�4]

5
8

0
 [2

2
�8

]

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 60 of 70



14 d&b Y-Series 

The Y8 and Yi8 loudspeakers

1 Broadband measurement, pink noise, crest factor 4, peak measurement, linear weighting
2 Dispersion angle vs frequency plotted using lines of equal sound pressure (isobars) 

 at –6 dB and –12 dB

Y8 and Yi8 loudspeakers

The compact Y8 and Yi8 line array loudspeakers are designed 

for use in vertical columns� The 2-way passive design features 

two 8" drivers in a dipole arrangement and a centrally mounted 

1�4" compression driver with a wave transformer� The Yi8 is the 

installation version of the Y8 loudspeaker and differs only in 

cabinet construction, finish and mounting hardware� 

Sophisticated horn geometry combined with the advanced 

bass-reflex port design delivers full bandwidth capabilities with 

an extended LF output� These high performance line array 

modules offer 80° horizontal directivity controlled down to 

500 Hz� 

The mechanical and acoustical design enables vertical arrays of 

up to twenty four loudspeakers with vertical splay angles from 

0° to 14° with a 1° resolution� It can be used in columns of 

purely Y8 or Yi8 loudspeakers or combined with Y12/Yi12 and/

or Y-SUB/Yi-SUB cabinets�

The loudspeaker cabinets are constructed from marine plywood, 

the Y8 has an impact and weather protected PCP (Polyurea 

Cabinet Protection) finish, while the Yi8 has an impact resistant 

paint finish� The front of the loudspeaker cabinet is protected by 

a rigid metal grill backed by an acoustically transparent foam� 

Each side panel of the Y8 incorporates a handle while two 

additional recessed grips are provided at the rear� Three point 

rigging hardware is integrated into the loudspeaker enclosure�

System data

Frequency response (–5 dB standard) ������������������ 54 Hz - 19 kHz

Frequency response (–5 dB CUT mode) ������������� 100 Hz - 19 kHz

Max� sound pressure (1 m, free field)1 ���������������������������������������������

with D6/10D ������������������������������������������������������������������������134 dB

with D12/30D/D20 ������������������������������������������������������������137 dB

with D80  ������������������������������������������������������������������������������139 dB

Loudspeaker data

Nominal impedance ��������������������������������������������������������������8 ohms

Power handling capacity (RMS/peak 10 ms) ���������400/1600 W

Nominal dispersion angle (h) ����������������������������������������������������80°

Splay angle settings ��������������������������������� 0° - 14° (1° increment)

Components ������������������������ 2 x 8" driver with neodymium magnet

��������������������������������������������������������������1�4" exit compression driver

�����������������������������������������������������������������passive crossover network

Connections Y8���������������������������������������������������������� 2 x NLT4 F/M 

������������������������������������������������������������ optional 2 x NL4 or 2 x EP5

Connections Yi8  ���������������������� 2 x NL4 and screw terminal block

Weight Y8/Yi8 ����������������������������������������������������������� 20 kg (44 lb)

Y8 cabinet dimensions in mm (inch)

Yi8 cabinet dimensions in mm (inch)

630 [24�8]
2

5
7

 [
1

0
]

3
7

5
 [

1
4

.8
]

1
6

2
 [

6
�4

]

1
5

°

Front view Side view

Top view Rear view

630 [24�8]

2
5

7
 [

1
0

]
3

7
5

 [
1

4
�8

]

1
6

2
 [

6
�4

]

1
5

°

Front view Side view

Top view Rear view

125 250 500 2k1k 4k 8k 16k

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

0

–10

–20

–30

–40

–50

–60

–70

–80

–90

Y8 and Yi8 horizontal dispersion characteristics2

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 61 of 70



16 d&b Y-Series 

The Y and Yi subwoofers

Y and Yi subwoofers

The Y-SUB and Yi-SUB are actively driven cardioid subwoofers 

powered by a single amplifier channel� The Yi-SUB is the 

installation version of the Y-SUB and differs only in cabinet 

construction, finish and mounting hardware� They house two long 

excursion neodymium drivers in an integrated cardioid setup, an 

18" driver in a bass-reflex chamber facing to the front and a 12" 

driver in a two chamber bandpass design radiating towards the 

rear�  

The cardioid dispersion pattern resulting from this arrangement 

avoids the distribution of energy behind the system, providing the 

greatest accuracy of low frequency reproduction and reducing 

the energy dispersed into unwanted areas� The Y-SUB and 

Yi-SUB are fitted with three point rigging hardware and can be 

flown in columns of purely Y or Yi subwoofers, at the top of a  

Y/Yi array or used in a ground stacked setup�  

The cabinets are constructed from marine plywood; the Y-SUB 

has an impact and weather protected PCP (Polyurea Cabinet 

Protection) finish while the Yi-SUB has an impact resistant paint 

finish� The front of the loudspeaker cabinet is protected by a rigid 

metal grill backed by an acoustically transparent foam, whilst the  

side panels of the Y-SUB incorporate four handles with four 

wheels mounted to the rear� 

System data

Frequency response (–5 dB standard) ������������������39 Hz - 140 Hz

Frequency response (–5 dB 100 Hz mode) ���������39 Hz - 110 Hz

Max� sound pressure (1 m, free field)1 ���������������������������������������������

with D6/10D ������������������������������������������������������������������������128 dB

with D12/30D/D20 ������������������������������������������������������������131 dB

with D80  ������������������������������������������������������������������������������134 dB 

Loudspeaker data

Nominal impedance ��������������������������������������������������������������8 ohms

Power handling capacity (RMS/peak 10 ms) ���������600/2400 W

Splay angle settings ���������������������������������������������������� 0° and 2�5° 

Components ����������������������� 1x 18" driver with neodymium magnet

�������������������������������������������� 1x 12" driver with neodymium magnet

Connections Y-SUB ����������������������������������������������������2 x NLT4 F/M 

������������������������������������������������������������ optional 2 x NL4 or 2 x EP5

Connections Yi-SUB  ����������������� 2 x NL4 and screw terminal block

Weight Y-SUB/Yi-SUB ������������������������������52/49 kg (115/108 lb)

700 [27�5]

804 [31�6]

5
0

0
 [

1
9

�7
]

630 [24�8]

Front view Side view

Top view Rear view

630 [24�8] 700 [27�5]

5
0

0
 [

1
9

�7
]

Front view Side view

Top view Rear view

Y-SUB cabinet dimensions in mm [inch]

Yi-SUB cabinet dimensions in mm [inch]

1 Broadband measurement, pink noise, crest factor 4, peak measurement, linear weighting

30

60

90

120

300

330

240

270

210

150

180 0

Cardiod polar pattern

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 62 of 70



d&b Amplifiers and Software     2120 d&b Amplifiers and Software

The installation specific four channel 30D amplifier is intended 

for permanent integration with applications that require medium 

to high Sound Pressure Level (SPL) capabilities� The 30D shares 

the same Digital Signal Processing platform as the latest 

generation of d&b amplifiers, providing a linear mode as well as 

configurations for all d&b loudspeakers� Applications which 

demand the highest Sound Pressure Levels may require the higher 

output power of the d&b D80 amplifier�

The DSP integrated within the 30D incorporates comprehensive 

loudspeaker management, switchable filtering functions as well 

as user definable equalization and delay capabilities� This 

includes two 16-band equalizers, providing optional parametric, 

asymmetric, shelving or notch filtering and up to 10 s (= 3440 

m/11286 ft) signal delay, all of which can be applied 

independently to each channel� 

The 30D is accessible via the d&b Remote network, either via 

Ethernet using the Open Control Architecture protocol (OCA) or 

CAN-Bus� The 30D is controlled using the integrated web 

interface, which enables access via a browser, or using the d&b 

R1 Remote control software� The device itself contains LEDs to 

display power, input, data and mute status� 

The LoadMatch function integrated within the 30D amplifier 

electrically compensates for the properties of loudspeaker cable 

used� The 30D incorporates Class D amplifiers utilizing a power 

supply with active Power Factor Correction (PFC) suitable for 

mains voltages 100 V/127 V, 50 – 60 Hz and 208 V/240 V, 

50 - 60 Hz and maintains a stable output when used with weak 

or unstable mains supplies� Input and output connectors are all 

Euroblock sockets� The 30D integrates with the d&b Remote 

network using either the OCA via Ethernet protocol or CAN-Bus 

using RJ 45 connectors� 

Control and indicators

POWER �������������������������������������������������������������Mains power switch

ISP, GR, OVL A/B ������������������������������������������������������ LED indicators

Digitial Signal Processing

Equalizer ����������������2 x 16-band PEQ/notch/shelving/asymmetric

Latency analog and digital inputs��������������������������������������0�3 msec

Delay setting ������������������������������������������������������� 0�3 - 10000 msec

Configurations �������������current d&b loudspeakers and linear mode

Function switches �������������������������d&b loudspeaker specific circuits

Frequency generator ����������������������������������Pink noise or Sine wave

Sampling rate ������������������������������96 kHz/27 Bit ADC/24 Bit DAC

Connectors

INPUT ANALOG (A1 - A4) �������������3-pin male Phoenix Euroblock

ANALOG LINK (A1 - A4) ����������������3-pin male Phoenix Euroblock

INPUT DIGITAL (D1 - D4) ��� 3-pin male Phoenix Euroblock, AES 3

DIGITAL LINK (Output) ������� 3-pin male Phoenix Euroblock, AES 3

Sampling rate ����������������������������������������������������������48 kHz/96 kHz

SPEAKER OUTPUTS A/B/C/D �����4-pin Phoenix Euroblock female

CAN ��������������������������������������������������������������������� 2 x RJ 45 parallel

ETHERNET ���������������������������������� 2 x RJ 45, 10/100 Mbit Ethernet

GPIOs 1 - 5 and GND (6) ��������������6-pin Phoenix Euroblock male

FAULT contact������������������������������������3-pin Phoneix Euroblock male

Mains connector ����������������������������������������������������������� powerCON1

Data (linear setting with subsonic filter)

Maximum output power per channel (THD + N < 0�5 %, both 

channels driven) ���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

CF = 6 dB at 4/8 ohms ������������������������������������� 2 x 1000/800 W

CF = 12 dB at 4/8 ohms ����������������������������������� 2 x 1600/800 W

S/N ratio (unweighted, RMS)

Analog input ������������������������������������������������������������������������104 dBr

Digital input ��������������������������������������������������������������������������106 dBr

Power supply

Universal range switched mode power supply with active Power 

Factor Correction (PFC) ���������������������������������������������������������������������

Rated mains voltage �������������������������������  100 - 240 V, 50 - 60 Hz

Dimensions, weight

Height x width x depth �������������������� 2 RU x 19” x 435 mm/17�1”

Weight �������������������������������������������������������������������� 10�6 kg/23�4 lb

1 powerCON® is a registered trademark of the Neutrik AG, Liechtenstein

The 30D amplifier

The 30D amplifier rear view

The 30D amplifier front view

30D amplifier dimensions in mm [inch]

30D

467 [18.4]

483 [19]

442 [17.4]

4
3

5
 [

1
7

.1
]

4
2

5
 [

1
6

.7
]

4
0

0
 [

1
5

.7
]

415 [16.3]

30

467 [18.4]

483 [19]

442 [17.4]

4
3

5
 [

1
7

.1
]

4
2

5
 [

1
6

.7
]

4
0

0
 [

1
5

.7
]

415 [16.3]

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 63 of 70



d&b D-Series 2726 d&b D-Series 1 etherCON® and powerCON® are registered trademarks of Neutrik AG, Liechtenstein

The D20 amplifier

The 2 RU four channel D20 amplifier is ideally suited to mobile 

applications which require low to medium Sound Pressure Level 

(SPL) capabilities� The D20 features the same Digital Signal 

Processing (DSP) platform as the latest generation of d&b 

amplifiers, containing configurations for all d&b loudspeakers 

except the J-Series and the M2 monitor, and a linear mode�

The signal delay capability enables user definable settings of up 

to 10 s (= 3440 m/11286 ft), which can be applied 

independently to each channel� The same applies to the two 

16-band equalizers, providing optional parametric, asymmetric, 

shelving or notch filtering�

The D20 incorporates a colour TFT touchscreen, offering quick 

access to the menu structure, while the rotary encoder can be 

used for fine adjustment� The front panel and the integrated 

touchscreen are tilted up for easy operation when the amplifier is 

below eye level�

The equal ratio of signal input to amplifier output channels 

increases application flexibility particularly for monitor, frontfill or 

effect channel use� The LoadMatch function integrated within the 

D20 amplifier electrically compensates for the properties of 

loudspeaker cable used�

The D20 incorporates Class D amplifiers utilizing a power supply 

with active Power Factor Correction (PFC) suitable for mains 

voltages 100 V - 240 V, 50 - 60 Hz and maintains a stable 

output when used with weak or unstable mains supplies� An NL8 

provides all outputs on a single connector for loudspeaker 

multicores� Dual channel mode is driven through four individual 

NL4 connectors, while Mix TOP/SUB and 2-Way Active mode 

output configurations for applicable d&b loudspeakers are 

available via two dedicated NL4 connectors�

Control and indicators
POWER �������������������������������������������������������������Mains power switch

SCROLL/EDIT ������������������������������������������������ Digital rotary encoder

Display ����������������� Colour TFT touchscreen, 3�5"/320 x 240 pixel

Digital Signal Processing
Equalizer ����������������2 x 16-band PEQ/notch/shelving/asymmetric

Latency analog and digital inputs��������������������������������������0�3 msec

Delay setting ������������������������������������������������������� 0�3 - 10000 msec

Configurations �������������current d&b loudspeakers and linear mode

������������������������������������������������������� except J-Series and M2 monitor

Function switches �������������������������d&b loudspeaker specific circuits

Frequency generator ����������������������������������Pink noise or Sine wave

Sampling rate ������������������������������96 kHz/27 Bit ADC/24 Bit DAC

Connectors
INPUT ANALOG (A1 - A4) ����������������������������������3 pin XLR female

ANALOG LINK (A1 - A4) ����������������������������������������3 pin XLR male

INPUT DIGITAL (D1/2, D3/4) �������������������3 pin XLR female AES3

DIGITAL LINK (Output) ��������������������������������������������3 pin XLR male

Sampling Digital AES3 �������������������������������������������48 kHz/96 kHz

SPEAKER OUTPUTS A/B/C/D ��������������������������������������������������NL4

Mix TOP/SUB/2-Way Active output A/B and C/D �����������������NL4

4 CHANNEL OUTPUT  ��������������������������������������������������������������NL8

CAN ��������������������������������������������������������������������� 2 x RJ 45 parallel

ETHERNET �������������������������2 x etherCON1, 10/100 Mbit Ethernet

Mains connector �����������������������������������������������������������powerCON1

Data (linear setting with subsonic filter)
Maximum output power per channel (THD + N < 0�5 %, all 

channels driven) ���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

CF = 6 dB at 4/8 ohms ������������������������������������� 4 x 1000/800 W

CF = 12 dB at 4/8 ohms ����������������������������������� 4 x 1600/800 W

S/N ratio (unweighted, RMS) �����������������������������������������������������������

Analog input  ������������������������������������������������������������������� > 104 dBr

Digital input ���������������������������������������������������������������������� > 106 dBr

Power supply
Universal range switched mode power supply with active Power 

Factor Correction (PFC) ���������������������������������������������������������������������

Rated mains voltage �������������������������������  100 - 240 V, 50 - 60 Hz

Dimensions, weight
Height x width x depth ��������������������� 2 RU x 19" x 460 mm/18�1"

Weight ������������������������������������������������������������������ 10�8 kg (23�8 lb)

The D20 ampliier front view

The D20 ampliier rear view

D20

483[19]

442�5[17�4]

414�95[16�3]

4
0

0
[1

5
�7

5
]

4
2

5
[1

6
�7

]

4
6

0
[1

8
�1

]

7
5

[3
]

Top view

Side viewFront view

D20 ampliier dimensions in mm [inch]

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 64 of 70



The DS10 Audio network bridge datasheet

1 etherCON® and powerCON® are registered trademark of the Neutrik AG, Liechtenstein

Control and indicators

BYPASS/NETWORK ................................................... Toggle switch

Switch port modes/Audio loss .................................. LED indicators

SYNC ERROR .......................................................Red LED indicator 

SUBSCRIBED (RX Subscription) ...................... Green LED indicator

Digital inputs 

DIGITAL IN...................................................3 pin XLR female AES3

Sampling .....................................................................32 - 192 kHz 

Synchronization ................................ Sample Rate Converter (SRC)

Digital outputs 

DIGITAL OUT  .................................................3 pin XLR male AES3

Sampling ...................................................................... 48 / 96 kHz

Synchronization .........................................................Dante network

Network

Connectors ......................................................................etherCON1

............................................................ built-in 5-port Ethernet switch

................................................................................ 100/1000 Mbit

Power supply

Mains connector ...........................................................powerCON1

Rated mains voltage ................................ 100 - 240 V, 50 - 60 Hz

Dimensions, weight

Height x width x depth ................................ 1 RU x 19“ x 232 mm

Weight ..................................................................3.75 kg / 8.26 lb

DS10 Audio network bridge

The DS10 Audio network bridge feeds up to 16 digital AES3 

channels to d&b amplifiers via Ethernet using the Dante audio 

transport protocol. This 1 RU device integrates directly into the 

d&b system approach, positioned in front of the amplifiers within 

the signal chain, and is ideally suited to both mobile and 

installation environments. The DS10 sends meta data including 

Dante channel labels and cabling information via the AES3 

channel stream to the d&b four channel amplifiers. As well as 

providing an interface from the Dante audio network to the 

digital inputs of the d&b amplifiers via Ethernet, the DS10 

provides 4 digital AES3 input channels for applications such as a 

break in from a Front of House console. 

The DS10 incorporates an integrated 5-port switch, offering a 

primary and redundant network for the Dante protocol, as well 

as advanced functions such as Multicast Filtering and VLAN 

modes. This switch flexibility provides extended connectivity for a 

laptop to control the d&b amplifiers using the R1 Remote control 

software via the OCA (Open Control Architecture) protocol. 

Using the DS10 Audio network bridge, audio signals and remote 

control data can be combined using a single Ethernet cable.

The front panel of the DS10 is designed to match the I/O panel 

of the D80 Touring rack assembly. This ensures a simple 

integration within existing system configurations. 

The DS10 features a power supply suitable for mains voltages 

100 V – 240 V, 50 – 60 Hz, with Overvoltage protection of up 

to 400 V.

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 65 of 70



The DS10 Audio network bridge datasheet

Features and benefits

 § Interface between the Dante audio transport protocol via Ethernet and the AES3 inputs of the d&b amplifiers

 § Integrated 5-port Ethernet switch provides extended connectivity and advanced functions such as redundancy, VLANs and multicast filtering

 § Four AES3 input channels for extended flexibility

 § In bypass mode, the DS10 acts as an AES3 distribution device

 § Dante meta data including channel label information sent through AES3 stream to the four channel d&b amplifiers

Applications

Mobile and permanently installed music and live program reinforcement • Theatres • Concert halls • Live performance venues • Night clubs 

• Stadiums and arenas • Multi-purpose halls • Houses of Worship • Corporate events • All sound reinforcement applications with an audio 

via Ethernet networking approach

Architectural specifications

The device shall act as a 16 output channel break-out box connecting the Dante audio network to the AES3 digital audio standard.

In addition, 4 x AES3 input channels shall be provided, including Sample Rate Converters (SRC).

A Bypass/Network switch shall be provided to allow the device to be used either as a AES3 distribution amplifier (Bypass) or as a normal 

Dante device (Network) in conjunction with Dante Controller.

The device shall provide a 5-port Ethernet switch for different network topologies, redundancy and advanced functions, including Multicast 

filtering and VLAN modes.

The device shall support four different switch modes which shall be accessible within Dante Controller to allow different applications and 

network topologies.

The device shall provide meta data (e.g. Dante channel labels) via the AES3 output streams, and these meta data shall be interpretable by 

d&b audiotechnik 4-channel amplifiers (10D, 30D, D20, D80).

The device shall provide Overvoltage Protection for voltages up to 400 V.

The dimensions (H x W x D) shall not exceed 1 RU x 19“ x 232 mm (1 RU x 19“ x 9.1“) and shall weigh no more than 3.75 kg (8.26 lb).

The device shall be the DS10 by d&b audiotechnik GmbH.

products@dbaudio.com, www.dbaudio.com

232 [9.1]

483 [19]

1
R
U

Front view

Side view

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 66 of 70



CITY OF LONE TREE 

STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor Millet and City Council 

FROM: Paul Ackerman, Technical Director LTAC 

FOR:  July 5, 2016 Study Session   

DATE: June 28, 2016 

SUBJECT: Approval for Capital Expenditure Exceeding $100,000.00 – Lobby Gallery 
Lighting 

Summary 
Attached for your approval is a purchase order for the 2016 budgeted capital improvement 
project to install new gallery-specific lighting in the hallways and lobby of the Lone Tree Arts 
Center. This project will be completed by Encore Electric, the company which has done all 
electrical work at the Arts Center from construction through today. As this purchase order 
exceeds the City Manager’s spending authority, we are requesting Council’s approval in 
order to install the lighting system in the August 2016 window we have built into the 
calendar. 
Cost 
The cost of the gallery lighting system is $114,150, plus an already incurred $6,000 design 
fee. While this is slightly over the $100,000 initially approved by Council as part of the 2016 
capital budget for the Arts Center, Arts Center staff have realized savings in other capital 
projects (video projector replacement, assistive listening system installation) to cover the 
additional costs and stay within the larger capital improvements budget. 

Suggested Motion or Recommended Action 
We ask Council to approve this purchase order to acquire and install gallery lighting from 
Encore Electric in the amount of $114,150. 

Background 
When the Arts Center was designed and built, the use of the lobby and corridors walls for 
displaying art was considered a passive use of the space. After several successful art 
exhibits, it became clear that displaying visual art at the Arts Center had become an integral 
part of our work. It also became apparent that the existing lighting, while mostly adequate, 
was not designed to illuminate artwork in a way that artists or observers found satisfying. At 
the recommendation of the Arts Commission, Council approved installing a lighting system 
designed to properly highlight the works of art frequently displayed. 

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 67 of 70



 

The new system will be installed in three places. Lights with high throw capacity will be 
installed atop the wall along the bank of restrooms on the east side of the lobby to illuminate 
work displayed along the Event Hall wall.  A series of eleven low profile linear fixtures 
supported by stand-off rods, will be installed along the wall of the east side restroom bank, 
approximately 12 feet above the floor.  Each fixture is four feet long with a gap of two feet 
between fixtures. This wash system is the most flexible solution in to accommodate wide 
range of different art placements we bring in. Finally, nineteen ceiling mounted linear LED 
lights, using the same fixtures as the lobby will be installed along the long corridor between 
the box office and the backstage door to illuminate the north wall and continue around into 
the administrative lobby. All of these systems will be dimmable, a feature we do not 
currently have. 
 
The choice of fixtures and their location were made by Architectural Lighting Designer Marla 
Struth. She selected fixtures with appropriate color temperature and color rendition for use 
in gallery applications, assuring that the look of the system is consistent with the modern 
and spare design of the building and lobby.  All existing lighting in the lobby and hallways 
will remain in place for ambient lighting, and will continue to function separately from the 
new gallery lighting systems. 
 
The installation will take four weeks. The process includes building electrical capacity for the 
system, pulling cable where it is needed, and then installing and testing the fixtures. Arts 
Center staff cleared the month of August for this work, as the lobby will certainly be a work 
zone during this project. 
 
Wall Mounted Insight Linear A fixture with stand-offs 
 

 
 
Ceiling mounted Insight Linear A fixture 
 

 
 

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 68 of 70



2107 West College Avenue 

  Englewood, CO  80110 

Phone:  303/934-1234 

  Fax: 303/937-8300 

 

 

 
 

May 9, 2016 

 

 

Paul Ackerman 

Lone Tree Arts Center 

10075 Commons St. 

Lone Tree, CO 80124 

 

Reference: Lobby and Corridor Lighting Upgrades 

Electrical Proposal 

 

Dear Paul,  

 

We are pleased to submit pricing for the electrical installation on the above referenced 

project.  Our proposal is based on the following detailed scope of work: 

 

 

1. Install (12) LSI LX2060 (Microcube) fixtures on east lobby wall above 

restrooms to light artwork on opposite wall. Install new dimmer and circuit for 

control of these fixtures via new dimming panel. 

2. Install (11) Insight Medley A Linear LED fixtures on east lobby walls. Install 

(1) new dimmer and circuit for control of these fixtures via new dimming 

panel. 

3. Install (19) Insight Medley A Linear LED fixtures throughout corridor (on 

walls that currently have fluorescent cove lighting). Install (1) new dimmer 

and circuit for control of these fixtures via new dimming panel. 

4. Install (4) LSI LX2060 (Microcube) fixtures on main entry column to light 

Donor Wall. Install new dimmer and circuit for control of these fixtures via 

new dimming panel. 

5. Install new dimming panel and associated wiring. Coordinate placement with 

LTAC. 

 

 

 
 
Base Project Cost      $114,150.00 
 
 

 
 
 
 

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 69 of 70



    

  

     

 

Qualifications, Inclusions & Exclusions 
Qualifications 

1. Cost is based on today’s commodity rates. Potential escalation of commodity rates is 

excluded.  

2. Existing Conduit to be used where possible. 

3. If a formal contract is required, please attach this proposal as part of the contract. 

4. Encore Electric, Inc. shall not be held liable for errors or emissions in designs by 

others. 

5. Surface raceway will be installed where conduits cannot be concealed in walls or 

ceilings. 

 

General Inclusions 

1. Coordination with LTAC 

2. Permit 

3. Applicable sales and use tax.  

4. Clean up of identifiable debris to your dumpster. 

5. Demo  

 

General Exclusions 

1. Overtime or shift work. 

2. Engineering fees. 

3. Cutting and channeling of millwork, casework or stainless steel. 

4. Cutting, patching and painting of walls, ceilings and floors. 

5. Painting of conduits. 

6. Dust control. 

7. Pedestrian barricades. 

8. Work associated with code upgrades. 

 

Sincerely, 

Encore Electric, Inc. 

 
 

Zachary A. Maestas 

Service & Special Projects 

 

07/05/16 City Council Packet Page 70 of 70


	2016-07-05 Agenda
	2016-06-21 Minutes
	MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING
	CITY OF LONE TREE
	HELD
	June 21, 2016

	Award of Contract for HVAC Equipment Replacement on Municipal Office Building
	1of4 Council HVAC Memo 062916
	2of4 Muni HVAC photo
	3of4 COLT HVAC Bid Page 06 21 16
	Sheet1

	4of4 HVAC ICA 062916

	Award of Contract for Roof Replacement on the Municipal Office Building
	10f4 Council Roof Memo 062916
	2of4 Muni Roof photo
	3of4 COLT Roof Bid Page 6.21.16
	Sheet1

	4of4 Roof ICA 062916

	Council Staff Memo LTAC Sound System Bid Approval
	Lone Tree_SAVI_Proposal Book
	Council Staff Memo LTAC Gallery Lighting Approval
	Encore Proposal Letter LTAC Lighting Upgrades REV 2



